Teamsters Local 346 Savings & 401(k) Plan

Summary Plan Description



October 1, 2024

Teamsters Local 346 Savings & 401(k) Plan 2002 London Road, Suite 300 Duluth, MN 55812 Telephone: 218-728-4231

Fax: 218-728-4773 www.Teamsters346benefits.com

INTRODUCTION

We are providing you with this updated Summary Plan Description to explain recent changes made to the Plan. The Plan was originally created on April 17, 1997, and it was known as the Teamsters Local 346 Defined Contribution Plan. At that time, no employee contributions were accepted and the Trustees selected the investments of the Plan. On March 1, 1999, the Plan was amended to allow Participants to make pre-tax contributions to the Plan. As of November 1, 2006, Participants have been able to self-direct their accounts from a range of investments chosen by the Trustees, or Participants may opt to have their account invested in a Target Date Fund in which the asset allocation mix automatically becomes more conservative as the participant nears retirement. On January 1, 2019, the Plan was amended to allow for Roth contributions on an after tax basis.

This summary describes the important features of the Plan in non-technical language. This summary is intended to answer most of your questions about the Plan and it replaces all prior announcements about the Plan. Because this booklet is a summary, it does not contain an explanation of each and every provision or term used in the more comprehensive Plan Document. If your circumstance is not described within this summary or, if you do not understand something in this booklet, a copy of the entire Plan Document is available for review at the Fund Office. You may also contact the Fund Office with your questions at (218) 728-4231.

The benefits provided by your Savings and 401(k) Plan are the result of the cooperative effort of Teamsters Local 346 and your Employer through the collective bargaining process. As a result of that process, Union members will share in retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits paid by the Plan.

We urge you to invest the time to read this booklet so you can learn about the Plan. If you have any questions about this booklet or eligibility for your benefits, please contact the Fund Office at (218) 728-4231.

Sincerely,

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Teamsters Local 346 Savings & 401(k) Plan

<u>Union Trustees</u> Zak Radzak Jeff Oveson Chad Ward – Alternate Employer Trustees
Tracy Christensen
Bob Schwartz
Rod Fournier – Alternate

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PLAN PARTICIPATION	1
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS	
BREAK IN SERVICE RULES	
ENTRY DATE	
CONTRIBUTIONS AND ALLOCATIONS	1
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS	
CATCH-UP CONTRIBUTIONS	
SALARY REDUCTION AGREEMENTS	
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS	
DEFINITION OF COMPENSATION	
PARTICIPANTS ELIGIBLE FOR ALLOCATIONS	
ROLLOVER CONTRIBUTIONS	
HIGHLY COMPENSATED EMPLOYEE LIMIT	
ACCOUNTS AND VALUATION	3
INVESTMENT OF ACCOUNTS	3
REQUIRED MINIMUM DISTRIBUTIONS	3
BENEFIT UPON RETIREMENT OR UPON REACHING AGE 591/2	3
BENEFIT UPON DISABILITY	4
BENEFIT UPON DEATH	5
BENEFIT UPON TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT	5
BENEFIT UPON DEMONSTRATION OF FINANCIAL HARDSHIP	6
IN SERVICE WITHDRAWALS NOT SUBJECT TO THE 10% IRS TAX PENALTY	7
PAYMENT OF BENEFITS	7
TAX WITHHOLDING ON PLAN BENEFITS	8
OTHER INFORMATION	8
PENSION APPLICATION	
DENIAL OF BENEFITS	
QUALIFIED DOMESTIC RELATIONS ORDERS	
GENERAL QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS	
IMPORTANT FACTS	
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION	
STATEMENT OF FDISA DICHTS	12

PLAN PARTICIPATION

Eligibility Requirements

You are eligible to enter the Plan as a Participant on the date the Employer first makes a contribution on your behalf, or when you are eligible to make Employee Contributions under the Plan. You are 100% vested in all contributions made on your behalf.

Break In Service Rules

In any Plan Year in which you do not complete more than 500 Hours of Service, you will incur a Break in Service and your participation in the Plan will cease. You will not incur a Break in Service if you are absent from work because of an authorized leave. Furthermore, if you are absent from work because of illness or maternity leave, you will receive credit for up to 500 hours of service if necessary to prevent you from incurring a Break in Service. An hour of service is any hour for which you have a right to be paid, including hours you are paid for vacation, holidays, illness, back pay and maternity leave.

Entry Date

You will enter the Plan as a Participant on the same date you satisfy the eligibility requirements. Upon becoming a Participant, the Administrator will establish an Account to receive your share of any Employer contributions and investment earnings and losses. Your Account will consist of the following sub-accounts: the Employee Contribution Account and the Employer Contribution Account.

CONTRIBUTIONS AND ALLOCATIONS

Employee Contribution

You may enter into a salary reduction agreement authorizing your Employer to withhold a cents-per-hour amount or a percentage of your Hourly Compensation. This amount is called an employee deferral, which your Employer will contribute to the Plan on your behalf. The minimum cents-per-hour employee deferral that you can select is \$0.10 an hour and you can increase that amount in \$0.05 increments. In 2024, the maximum amount of employee deferral is \$23,000 per year (this amount is adjusted annually for inflation). If you are eligible to make "catch up contributions," meaning you are over age 50 or turn 50 by the end of the calendar year, the maximum amount of your employee deferral in 2024 is \$30,500 (as adjusted for inflation).

You may elect to contribute to a traditional 401(k) account on a pretax basis. With a traditional 401(k) account, pretax contributions, plus earnings, are taxed when distributed.

If your Union and Employer have negotiated Collective Bargaining Agreement language in which the Employer has agreed to deduct Roth elective deferrals, you may also make Roth contributions to the Plan on an after tax basis. With a Roth account, the contributions are taxed when deposited but the distribution (including earnings) is generally not taxed when received.

If you elect to contribute to a Roth account, the Plan will maintain a record of the Roth elective deferrals separately from your traditional 401(k) account and the contributions, earnings, and charges will be maintained in separate accounts.

In addition, in no event can the combined employee deferral amount plus employer contributions exceed 100% of gross wages or \$69,000 per year (as adjusted for inflation). You will at all times have a 100% vested interest in all amounts credited to your account.

Catch-Up Contributions

If you are age 50 or over you can make an additional employee contribution (above the \$23,000 limit as indexed for inflation) of an additional \$7,500 per year.

If you will reach age 50 by the end of a calendar year (December 31) you can make catch-up contributions at the beginning of that same calendar year even though you have not yet reached age 50.

Salary Reduction Agreement

You can increase or decrease your salary reduction by giving written notice to the Fund Office. In addition, you may change your salary reduction agreement at the time you receive an across the board wage increase pursuant to a Collective Bargaining Agreement in a manner determined by the Trustees. You can also suspend or cancel the agreement at any time upon reasonable written notice not to exceed 30 days. After receiving your written notice, the Fund will cancel your salary reduction agreement as soon as administratively feasible.

Employer Contributions

Your Employer will make contributions to the Plan that are collectively bargained between your Employer and Teamsters Local 346. The amount of Employer Contributions made by your Employer are determined based on the terms of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between your Employer and Teamsters Local 346. You will at all times have a 100% vested interest in amounts credited to your Employer Contribution Account.

Definition Of Compensation

The Compensation used to determine contributions and allocations is the total amount you receive from the Employer for the Plan Year, excluding any amount over \$345,000 (as adjusted for inflation).

Participants Eligible For Allocations

If you complete one hour of eligible service while a Participant you will be eligible to receive a contribution allocation for that Plan Year if called for under the terms of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Rollover Contributions

If you participated in another qualified retirement plan before you were employed by an Employer, you can transfer (or rollover) any distribution made to you from that plan to this Plan provided all legal requirements (and any requirements imposed by the Trustees) with respect to such a transfer are satisfied. Do not withdraw funds from any other plan or account until you have received written approval from the Fund Office to roll those funds over into this Plan. If you do decide to make a rollover contribution and it is accepted by the Trustees, it will be kept in a separate Rollover Account established on your behalf. You will at all times have a 100% Vested Interest in all amounts credited to your Rollover Account. Your Rollovers cannot be withdrawn from the Plan until you are entitled to receive a distribution of your Account.

Highly Compensated Employee Limit

The IRS sets limits on certain contributions to guarantee that contributions by or made on behalf of highly compensated employees ("HCEs") do not significantly exceed the contributions made by other employees, known as non-highly compensated employees ("NHCEs"). To satisfy these rules, it may be necessary to reduce or refund contributions made by HCEs. Under IRS limits, you are considered highly compensated for 2024 if you earned \$155,000 or more in 2024. These limits are adjusted by the IRS to reflect changes in the cost of living. You also will be considered an HCE for the current plan year if you owned a 5% or greater interest in an Employer in the current or the immediately preceding, calendar year.

ACCOUNTS AND VALUATION

As a Participant in the Plan, you will have an individual account to which you will be credited Employer contributions, Employee contributions (if you are signatory to a Salary Reduction Agreement) and your share of your individual account's investment earnings or losses (after adjustment for investment manager fees) and expenses of the Plan.

The reasonable expenses of administering the Plan will be paid by the Plan participants. Plan expenses are charged against individual participant accounts based upon both a pro-rata and per capita division of expenses. A percentage of expenses are paid pro-rata, in which you pay expenses based upon the amount in your account bears to the total of all participant account balances. Remaining expenses are paid per capita, in which each participant pays an equal amount of Plan expenses.

As soon as possible after each calendar quarter (March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31), you will receive an individual account statement showing the balance of your account and the changes which have occurred during the quarter.

INVESTMENT OF ACCOUNTS

You will be required to direct the investment of your Account. If you do not direct your Account it will be invested in a Target Date Fund based upon your age. With regard to your directed investments, you will be allowed to choose from the investment alternatives selected by the Trustees. The Trustees maintain the right to limit your choice of investment vehicles and firms. All earnings on your directed investments will be credited to your Account. You will be able to switch between investment alternatives as often as permitted under rules stipulated by the Trustees. The portion of this Plan that is self-directed is intended to comply with Section 404(c) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Under regulations issued under Section 404(c), if the Plan permits you to exercise independent control over any portion of the assets in your Account, then the fiduciaries of the Plan, including the Trustees, the Administrator and the Employer, are relieved of liability for any losses resulting from your exercise of such control.

REOUIRED MINIMUM DISTRIBUTIONS

The distribution of your benefits generally cannot be delayed beyond April 1 of the year you reach age 73 provided age 73 is reached before 2033. If age 73 is reached in 2033 or later your benefits cannot be delayed beyond April 1 of the year you reach age 75. The amount of your minimum required distributions are determined based upon the value of your account and your age.

BENEFIT UPON RETIREMENT OR UPON REACHING AGE 59½

You are entitled to receive 100% of your Account after you reach Early Retirement Age and retire from active employment. Early Retirement Age is the date you reach age 55.

You are also entitled to receive 100% of your Account after you reach Normal Retirement Age regardless of whether you retire from active employment or you choose to continue working. Normal Retirement Age is the date you reach age 59½.

You can elect to postpone retirement and continue working after you reach Normal or Early Retirement Age, in which case distribution of your Account will be postponed until you actually retire.

If your Account does not exceed \$1,000 it will be distributed in a lump sum; but when an account over \$1,000 is distributed, it must be distributed in the form of monthly payments unless you waive this form of distribution. If you are not married when monthly payments begin, they will cease to be made when you die. If you are married when monthly payments begin, they will continue to be made after you die for the life of your surviving spouse.

The amount of each monthly payment made to your surviving spouse will be at least 50% of the monthly payment you were receiving when you died, but not more than 100%. You can select any percentage between 50% and 100%, but the higher the percentage, the smaller the monthly payments will be to you during your lifetime and to your surviving spouse after you die. The Plan itself does not pay the Joint and Survivor Annuity (QJSA). You may select one of those companies which pays a monthly benefit during your life and the life of your spouse based upon the amount in your account and the ages of you and your spouse.

You can waive monthly payments entirely, but if you are married your spouse must give written consent to the waiver. If you (and your spouse, if applicable) do waive monthly payments, your Vested Interest will be distributed in a lump sum payment.

BENEFIT UPON DISABILITY

If you become disabled before your Account is distributed, you are entitled to receive the balance in your Account. To be considered disabled for purposes of the Plan, you must suffer a physical or mental condition as a Participant that qualifies you for disability benefits under the Social Security Act; but even if you qualify for Social Security disability benefits, you will not be considered disabled for purposes of this Plan if the physical or mental condition is caused (1) by the use of intoxicants or other substances; (2) by an intentionally self-inflicted injury or sickness; (3) by an unlawful act on your part; or (4) by military service which qualifies you for a military disability pension.

If your Account balance does not exceed \$1,000, it will be distributed in a lump sum as soon as administratively feasible after you become disabled. If your Account balance is over \$1,000, you can elect to have it distributed as soon as administratively feasible after you become disabled, or you can defer distribution until a later date; but you cannot defer distribution beyond April 1st of the calendar year which follows the calendar year in which you reach age 73.

If your Account balance is over \$1,000, it must be distributed in the form of monthly payments unless you waive this form of distribution. If you are not married when monthly payments begin, they will cease to be made when you die. If you are married when monthly payments begin, they will continue to be made after you die for the life of your surviving spouse. The amount of each monthly payment made to your surviving spouse will be at least 50% of the monthly payment you were receiving when you died, but not more than 100%. You can select any percentage between 50% and 100%, but the higher the percentage, the smaller the monthly payments will be to you during your lifetime and to your surviving spouse after you die. The Plan itself does not pay the Joint and Survivor Annuity (QJSA). You may select one of those companies which pays a monthly benefit during your life and the life of your spouse based upon the amount in your account and the ages of you and your spouse.

You can waive monthly payments entirely, but if you are married your spouse must give written consent to the waiver. If you (and your spouse, if applicable) do waive monthly payments, your Vested Interest will be distributed in a lump sum payment.

BENEFIT UPON DEATH

If you die before your Account is distributed, your beneficiary is entitled to receive the balance in your Account. If you are not married, you can name anyone to be your beneficiary. If you are married, your spouse is designated by law to be the beneficiary of 100% of your Vested Interest. Your spouse can waive in writing his or her statutory death benefit entirely, in which case you can name another beneficiary to receive 100% of your account balance. Any death benefit payable to a beneficiary will be distributed in a lump sum as soon as administratively feasible after your death.

BENEFIT UPON TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

If you terminate employment before reaching Normal or Early Retirement Age, or before death or disability, you will be entitled to receive the entire amount in your Account.

Following the termination of your employment, your Account will be distributed to you as soon as administratively feasible after the one-year anniversary of your termination of employment. If your account balance does not exceed \$1,000 it will be distributed in a lump sum after the one-year anniversary of your termination of employment. If your account balance is over \$1,000, you can elect to have it distributed as soon as administratively feasible after the one-year anniversary of your termination of employment or you can elect to defer distribution until a later date; but you cannot defer distribution beyond April 1st of the calendar year which follows the calendar year in which you reach age 73.

For purposes of this section, your termination of employment occurs at the end of the last month in which employee or employer contributions are made on your behalf. This includes instances where you transfer from a bargaining unit position represented by Local 346 to a non-bargaining unit position and you are no longer eligible to participate in the Plan.

Special Provision for Plant Shutdowns or Your Out-of-State Relocation: The one-year waiting period will not be imposed in the following circumstances:

- a) If you lose employment because of a company closure, and the Company no longer has a Collective Bargaining Agreement in effect with Teamsters Local 346, the disbursement of your account will be made as soon as administratively feasible after the company closure.
- b) If you terminate service with a contributing employer and you establish a principal residence outside of Minnesota and Wisconsin, the disbursement of your account will be made as soon as administratively feasible following proof of your out-of-state residency (e.g., a lease, job offer letter, out-of-state driver's license, utility bill, etc.).

If your Account balance is over \$1,000, it must be distributed in the form of monthly payments unless you waive this form of distribution. If you are not married when monthly payments begin, they will cease to be made when you die. If you are married when monthly payments begin, they will continue to be made after you die for the life of your surviving spouse. The amount of each monthly payment made to your surviving spouse will be at least 50% of the monthly payment you were receiving when you died, but not more than 100%. You can select any percentage between 50% and 100%, but the higher the percentage, the smaller the monthly payments will be to you during your lifetime and to your surviving spouse after you die. The Plan itself does not pay the Joint and Survivor Annuity (QJSA). You may select one of those companies which pays a monthly benefit during your life and the life of your spouse based upon the amount in your account and the ages of you and your spouse.

You can waive monthly payments entirely, but if you are married your spouse must give written consent to the waiver. If you (and your spouse, if applicable) do waive monthly payments, your Vested Interest will be distributed in a lump sum payment.

BENEFIT UPON DEMONSTRATION OF FINANCIAL HARDSHIP

When you have a demonstrable financial hardship you may apply for all or a portion of your Account. Upon application the Plan will make financial hardship distributions provided the Participant meets the Plan's standards for such distributions. In order to be entitled to a hardship distribution you must present evidence to the Trustees in a written application showing that the amount of the requested distribution is not in excess of the amount required to meet the need (including amounts necessary to pay state and federal income taxes and penalties resulting from the distribution); you have obtained any other available distributions under the Plans available to you through your employment; and you have insufficient cash or other liquid assets to satisfy the need.

In addition, the immediate and heavy need must result from:

- Medical expenses previously incurred by you, your spouse or dependents;
- Payments necessary to prevent eviction from your principal residence or to prevent foreclosure on a mortgage on your principal residence (not monthly mortgage payments);
- Purchase of your principal residence;
- Tuition payments, room and board, and related educational expenses for the next 12 months of post-secondary education for you, your spouse or your dependents;
- Payments for burial or funeral expenses for your deceased parent, spouse, child or dependent; or
- Payments of expenses for the repair of damage to your principal residence that would qualify for the casualty deduction under IRS Code § 165 regardless of whether the losses are attributable to a federally declared disaster.

If you are married, written consent of your spouse is required for a financial hardship distribution.

The Trustees will make the final determination on whether a demonstrable financial hardship exists, what amount is required to meet the immediate financial need created by the hardship, and whether you have any other reasonably available sources to satisfy the need.

The hardship withdrawal will be made from your pre-tax Employee Contribution Account then from your Employer Contribution Account. The withdrawal will be made pro-rata across your investment funds unless you direct otherwise in writing.

The withdrawal will be in the form of a check made payable to you.

Withdrawals before age 59½ are subject to a 10% IRS tax penalty, except under certain circumstances specified under IRS regulations. Please consult your own professional tax advisor regarding the tax consequences of any pre-age 59½ withdrawal or distribution.

IN SERVICE WITHDRAWALS NOT SUBJECT TO THE 10% IRS TAX PENALTY

Emergency Expense Distributions

You may apply for an emergency personal expense distribution of up to \$1,000 or the non-forfeitable interest in your account, whichever is less. To receive such a distribution, you must provide a written certification stating that the distribution is necessary to meet unforeseeable or immediate financial needs relating to necessary personal or family emergency expenses. You have the option to repay the distribution within three years. No further emergency distributions are allowed in the following three calendar years unless the distribution is fully repaid, or you contribute through elective deferrals an amount at least equal to the amount of your emergency distribution. If you repay the amount or contribute through elective deferrals an amount equal to your emergency distribution, you may apply for another emergency personal distribution but no more often than one distribution per calendar year. The Plan will include the amount paid to you in gross income in the year it was distributed unless fully repaid in the same year.

Federally Declared Disaster Distributions

If the President declares a federal disaster in the area in which you live and you suffer an economic loss in connection with the disaster, you may make a withdrawal of up to \$22,000 or the non-forfeitable interest in your account, whichever is less. You must apply within 180-days of the disaster. You may repay all or a portion of the disaster recovery distribution at any time during the three-year period after the distribution was received. The amount paid to you as a disaster distribution will be included in gross income, spread over a three-year period, beginning with the taxable year that you received the disaster distribution.

Domestic Abuse Distributions

You may apply for a domestic abuse distribution if you self-certify that you have experienced domestic abuse by a spouse or domestic partner within the previous one-year period. The maximum available is \$10,000 (indexed for inflation) or 50% of the nonforfeitable interest in your account, whichever is less. "Domestic abuse" means physical, psychological, sexual, emotional, or economic abuse, including efforts to control, isolate, humiliate, or intimidate the victim, or to undermine the victim's ability to reason independently, including by means of abuse of the victim's child or other family member living in the household. You have the option to repay all or part of this distribution during the three-year period starting the day the distribution is received. The distribution is included in gross income in the year it is received. The joint and survivor spousal consent requirements applicable to other distributions are not applicable to domestic abuse distributions.

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

This section addresses how benefits can be paid to you, your spouse and/or beneficiary upon retirement, disability, death or termination of employment.

If you are not married, or if married you and your spouse both reject the Joint and Survivor Annuity form of payment, you may choose one of the following payment options:

- 1. A lump sum payment of the entire value of your Account.
- 2. A partial lump sum payment in an amount specified by you.

- 3. Installments (monthly, quarterly, semi-annually) in multiples of \$50, provided that it must be an amount so that your account will be expected to be paid to you during your lifetime or the joint life expectancy of you and your designated beneficiary.
- 4. You may also choose to delay receiving benefits until the April 1st of the year that follows the year you reach age 73. However, if you delay receiving benefits until that time the Plan must make installment payments to you in an amount so that your Account will be expected to be paid to you during your lifetime or the joint life expectancy of you and your designated beneficiary.

If upon retirement, termination of service, or disability your Account balance is less than \$1,000, the Trustees have the right to make payment of your account in one lump sum regardless of your payment option selected.

TAX WITHHOLDING ON PLAN BENEFITS

Distributions Not Subject To Withholding

Any distribution that is eligible to be rolled over and which is directly transferred to another qualified retirement plan or to an individual retirement account (IRA) is not subject to income tax withholding. Generally, any part of a distribution can be rolled over to another qualified plan or an IRA unless the distribution (1) is part of a series of equal periodic payments made over your lifetime, over the lifetime of you and your beneficiary, or over a period of 10 years or more; or (2) is a minimum payment you must receive because you have reached age 73. There are additional distributions that cannot be rolled over. Contact the Administrator if you have any questions regarding whether a Plan distribution can be rolled over.

Distributions Subject To Withholding

If you choose to have your Plan benefit paid to you and the benefit is eligible to be rolled over, you only receive 80% of the benefit payment. The Administrator is required by law to withhold 20% of the benefit payment and remit it to the Internal Revenue Service as income tax withholding to be credited against your taxes. If you receive the distribution before you reach age 59½, you may also have to pay an additional 10% tax. You cannot elect out of the 20% withholding. The only way to avoid the 20% withholding is to leave your benefit in this Plan or have it transferred directly to an IRA or to another qualified retirement plan that accept rollovers. You may still rollover any eligible distribution that is paid to you by putting the eligible distribution into an IRA or into another qualified retirement plan within 60 days of receiving it. If you want to rollover 100% of the eligible distribution to an IRA or to another qualified retirement plan, you must find other money to replace the 20% that was withheld. Due to the complexities and frequency of changes in the federal tax law that governs withdrawal penalties and taxes, you should consult your tax advisor to determine your personal tax situation before taking any distribution from the Plan.

OTHER INFORMATION

Pension Application

How do I get an application for benefits?

You can receive an application by writing, emailing, calling, online or visiting the Fund Office at:

Teamsters Local 346 Savings & 401(k) Plan 2002 London Road, Suite 300 Duluth, MN 55812 Telephone: (218) 728-4231 Email: <u>TeamstersLocal346@wilson-mcshane.com</u> www.Teamsters346benefits.com

If you need help in completing your application, the staff at the Fund Office will assist you.

When should I apply for my retirement benefits?

You should file your application with the Trustees at the address of the Fund Office at least three months in advance of the date you expect your benefits to begin. If you delay in filing your application, the payment of your pension might be delayed, too.

Must proof of age and marital status be submitted with the application?

Yes. Instructions describing the types of acceptable proof of age will be given to you with your application. You will be asked to submit proof of your spouse's age and proof of your marriage.

Who will decide if I am eligible for benefits?

The Board of Trustees who are bound by the rules of the Plan will decide if you meet the eligibility requirements for benefits. The Trustees will review the documents you submit with your application and have the authority to interpret and construe the terms of the Plan and Trust and determine eligibility.

How does a surviving spouse or beneficiary file for benefits?

As soon as possible after the death of the Participant or pensioner, the Fund Office should be contacted to request instructions about filing an application for the appropriate death benefits. A certified copy of the Participant's or pensioner's death certificate must be filed.

Denial of Benefits

How Will I Know if My Pension Application Is Denied?

If your claim for benefits is wholly or partially denied, you will receive a written notice of denial which will contain the following information:

- The specific reason for the denial with specific reference to pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial is based;
- A description of any additional material or information necessary for you to perfect the claim and an explanation of why such materials is necessary;
- A description of the Plan's review procedures and the time limits applicable to such procedures, including a statement of your right to bring a civil action under § 502(a) of ERISA following the denial of an appeal by the Board of Trustees.

The Notice of Denial shall be given within a reasonable period of time but no later than ninety (90) days after the claim is filed, unless special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claim. If such extension is required, you will be sent written notice before the expiration of the initial 90 day period, stating the special circumstances requiring the extension and the date by which a decision on the claim can be expected. In no event shall such extension exceed 90 days from the end of the initial 90 day period.

If my Claim for Benefits is Denied, What are my rights to Appeal?

Within sixty (60) days after receipt of a written notification of denial, you or your authorized representative may request a review of the claim by filing a written appeal with the Board of Trustees. You or your authorized representative will have the opportunity to meet in person with

the Trustees at a date and time designated by the Trustees and also submit written comments, documents, records and other information relating to the claim for benefits.

Upon receipt of an appeal of an adverse benefit determination, the Trustees or a committee appointed by the Trustees and authorized to act on such an appeal, shall proceed to review the administrative file, including the written appeal. All comments, documents, records and other information submitted by you relating to the claim will be taken into account without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination.

A decision by the Trustees shall be made at the next succeeding regular Trustees' meeting following your appeal, except an appeal received within thirty (30) days preceding the date of such meeting. In such case, a benefit determination may be made no later than the date of the second meeting following the Plan's receipt of the appeal. If special circumstances require a further extension of time for processing, a benefit determination will be made no later than the third meeting following receipt of the appeal. Notification of the extension shall be sent to you prior to the commencement of the extension describing the special circumstances and the date by which the benefit determination will be made. You shall be notified of the decision of the Trustees in writing within five (5) days after the benefit determination is made or within sixty (60) days after you file your appeal, whichever is later.

Any notice of an adverse benefit determination will include (1) the specific reason or reasons for the adverse determination; (2) reference to the specific Plan provisions on which the benefit determination is based; (3) a statement that you are entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge, reasonable access to and copies of all documents, records, and other information relevant to your claim; (4) a statement describing any voluntary appeal procedures offered by the Plan and your right to obtain information about such procedures; and (5) a statement of your right to bring an action under § 502(a) of ERISA. The decision of the Board of Trustees shall be in writing.

In the event you desire additional time to present evidence in support of your appeal, you may request such additional time in writing. The Trustees shall grant your written request for additional time necessary to perfect an appeal, provided the written request is received before the Trustees issue their decision. Request for additional time and requests to submit additional information received after the Trustees' decision has been rendered shall be denied, unless the Trustees, in their sole discretion, determine that the information is material to the appeal and could not have been provided earlier.

The Trustees have full discretionary authority to interpret the Trust Agreement and all Plan Documents and to make all factual determinations concerning any claim or right asserted under or against the Plan or Trust Fund. In all cases, benefits under this Plan will be paid only if the Board of Trustees (or a committee of the Board) decides in its discretion that you are entitled to them.

The decision of the Board of Trustees on an appeal or the denial of an appeal after the right to review has been waived shall be final and binding upon all parties, including you. No lawsuit may be filed without first exhausting the above appeals procedure. In any such lawsuit, the determinations of the Trustees are subject to judicial review only for abuse of discretion. No legal action may be commenced or maintained against the Plan more than two (2) years after a claim has been denied.

Oualified Domestic Relations Orders

What are the rights of a (former) divorced spouse?

Federal law provides that in the event of divorce, your former spouse may have a right to receive some portion of your retirement benefits directly from the Plan. In connection with a divorce or

property settlement agreement, a court may direct that a portion of your retirement benefit be paid to your former spouse. The Fund will recognize such a court order and make direct payments to your former spouse, only if it is a "Qualified Domestic Relations Order" ("QDRO") as required by federal law. The Fund has written procedures for notifying you of the receipt of a QDRO.

General Ouestions and Answers

If I owe money, can I sign over my rights to benefits?

No. Except in the case of a Qualified Domestic Relations Order you cannot make an assignment, a pledge, or in any way dispose of your benefit rights. Any attempt to do so is void and of no effect. This is done for your protection. To the extent permitted by law, benefit payments are not subject to garnishment or attachment.

Can an employee receive a refund of the money paid to the Fund on his behalf by his employer?

No. There shall be no refund of contributions.

Must I retire when I reach a particular age?

No. Retirement under this Plan is voluntary.

Can I receive Social Security benefits in addition to the benefits provided by this Plan?

Yes. Benefits paid by the Social Security Administration are independent of this Plan. You should file for any benefits you are entitled to receive from Social Security.

Can I borrow money from my Account?

No. The Plan does not have a loan provision. You may, however, be eligible for a financial hardship distribution pursuant to the terms of the Plan.

Important Facts

The following information provides important facts about the Plan that you should know.

Plan Name:

This Plan is known as the Teamsters Local 346 Savings & 401(k) Plan

Plan Number: 001

Employer Identification Number: 41-1872921

Plan and Fiscal Year: Begins January 1 and ends on December 31.

Type of Plan: Profit Sharing Plan

Board of Trustees:

A Board of Trustees is responsible for the operation of this Plan. The Board of Trustees consists of an equal number of Employer and Union representatives selected by the Employers and the Unions respectively that have entered into Collective Bargaining Agreements that relate to the Plan. If you wish to contact the Board of Trustees, you may use the address and phone number below:

Board of Trustees Teamsters Local 346 Savings & 401(k) Plan 2002 London Road, Suite 300 Duluth, MN 55812 Telephone: (218) 728-4231

Email: TeamstersLocal346@wilson-mcshane.com

The Board of Trustees is both a Plan Sponsor and Plan Administrator. As of October 1, 2024, the Trustees of this Plan are:

Union Trustees Employer Trustees

Zak Radzak Tracy Christensen

Teamsters Local 346 Duluth Transit Authority
P.O. Box 16208 2402 West Michigan Street

Duluth, MN 55816-0208 Duluth, MN 55806

Jeff Oveson Bob Schwartz
Teamsters Local 346 Schwartz Redi-Mix
P.O. Box 16208 34882 Scenic Hwy
Duluth, MN 55816-0208 Bovey, MN 55709

Chad Ward - Alternate

Teamsters Local 346

P.O. Box 16208

Rod Fournier - Alternate
Duluth Transit Authority
2402 West Michigan Street

Duluth, MN 55816-0208 Duluth, MN 55806

Agent for Service of Legal Process:

If legal disputes involving the Plan arise, any legal documents should be served upon the following agent for service of legal process or upon any of the Trustees:

Timothy W. Andrew Andrew, Bransky, & Poole, P.A. 302 West Superior Street, Suite 300 Duluth, MN 55802-5125

Collective Bargaining Agreements:

This Plan is maintained pursuant to Collective Bargaining Agreements between Employers and the Union. A copy of any such agreement may be obtained by Participants and beneficiaries upon written request of the Trustees and is available for examination at the Fund Office. The Fund Office will provide you, upon written request, information as to whether a particular employer is contributing to the Plan on behalf of Participants working under the Collective Bargaining Agreements.

Source of Contribution:

The benefits described in this booklet are provided through Employer contributions and Employee Deferrals. The amount of Employer contributions and the employees on whose behalf contributions are made are determined by the provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Additional Information

General Information:

The Board of Trustees determines the rules and regulations of the Plan. By amendment, the Board of Trustees can change the terms, conditions or benefits of the Plan. The Trustees have discretionary authority to determine eligibility for benefits and to construe the terms of the Plan, including doubtful or disputed provisions. No Employer or Union representative has the authority to interpret the Plan or give advice that is binding on the Board of Trustees.

Your pension rights are governed by the legal Plan Document as amended from time-to-time. You must refer to the full text of the Plan to answer any specific questions. If any inconsistencies exist between this booklet and the full text of the provisions of the Plan, as amended from time-to-time, the full Plan Document shall prevail.

Amendment or Termination

Although the Plan is intended to be permanent, the Board of Trustees can amend or terminate the Plan at any time. If the Plan is terminated, all Participants will have a 100% Vested Interest in their Accounts as of the date of termination, and all benefits will be distributed in a lump sum or as a deferred annuity purchased from an insurance company to guarantee payment of a monthly pension at Normal Retirement Age. Should the Plan ever be amended or terminated, each Participant (and any beneficiary receiving benefits) will be notified in writing.

The retirement Plan is a profit sharing plan and is not the type of plan permitted to be insured or guaranteed by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation,

STATEMENT OF ERISA RIGHTS

As a Participant in the Plan, you are entitled to certain rights and protections under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). ERISA provides that all Participants (1) are entitled to examine without charge at the Fund Office and at other specified locations (such as work-sites and union halls) all Plan Documents, collective bargaining agreements and copies of all Plan Documents filed with the U.S. Department of Labor, such as detailed annual reports and Plan objectives; (2) are entitled to obtain copies of all Plan Documents and other information upon written request to the Administrator (who may make a reasonable charge for the copies); (3) are entitled to receive a summary of the Plan's annual financial report and a copy of the Administrator's summary annual report; and (4) are entitled to obtain a statement telling if you have a right to receive a pension at normal retirement age and if so, what your benefits would be if you stopped working now. If you do not have a right to a pension, the statement will tell you how many more years you have to work to get a pension. This statement must be requested in writing, is not required to be given more than once a year, and must be provided free of charge.

ERISA also imposes duties upon the people responsible for the operation of the plan. These people, called fiduciaries, have a duty to operate the Plan prudently and in the interest of all Participants. No one, including the Employer, a union, or any other person, may fire you or discriminate against you in any way to prevent you from obtaining a pension benefit or from exercising your ERISA rights. If your claim is denied in whole or part, you must receive a written explanation, and you have the right to have the Plan review and reconsider your claim.

There are steps you can take to enforce your ERISA rights. For instance, if you request materials from the Plan and do not receive them within 30 days, you may file suit in federal court. If fiduciaries misuse the Plan's money or if you are discriminated against for asserting your ERISA rights, you may seek help from the U.S. Department of Labor, or you may file suit in federal court. The court will decide who should pay court costs and legal fees. If you win your suit, the court may order the person you sued to pay the costs and fees. If you lose your suit, the court may order you to pay the costs and fees, if, for example, the court finds that your claim was frivolous. If you have questions about the Plan, contact the Administrator. If you have questions about this statement or about your ERISA rights, contact the nearest Area Office of the Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor listed in your telephone directory, or the Division of Technical Assistance and Inquiries, Employee Benefits Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20210.